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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Orvana Minerals Corp. were prepared by management in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board. Management acknowledges responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the audited annual
consolidated financial statements, including responsibility for significant accounting judgments and estimates and
the choice of accounting principles and methods that are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances. The
significant accounting policies of the Company are summarized in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Management has established systems of internal control over the financial reporting process, which are designed to
provide reasonable assurance that relevant and reliable financial information is produced.
The Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing and approving the consolidated financial statements and for
ensuring that management fulfills its financial reporting responsibilities. An Audit Committee assists the Board of
Directors in fulfilling this responsibility. The members of the Audit Committee are not officers of the Company. The
Audit Committee meets with management to review the internal controls over the financial reporting process, the
consolidated financial statements and the auditors’ report. The Audit Committee also reviews other continuous
disclosure documents of the Company containing financial information to ensure that the financial information
reported therein is consistent with the information presented in the consolidated financial statements. The Audit
Committee reports its findings to the Board of Directors for its consideration in approving the audited annual
consolidated financial statements together with other financial information of the Company for issuance to the
shareholders. The external auditors have full and unrestricted access to the Audit Committee to discuss the scope
of their audits, the adequacy of the system of internal controls and review financial reporting issues.
Management recognizes its responsibility for conducting the Company’s affairs in compliance with established
financial standards, and applicable laws and regulations, and for maintaining proper standards of conduct for its
activities.
[signed]

[signed]

William C. Williams

Daniella Dimitrov

President and Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Toronto, Canada
December 20, 2012
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December 20, 2012

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of
Orvana Minerals Corp.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Orvana Minerals Corp.
(the Company) and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at
September 30, 2012 and 2011 and October 1, 2010, and the consolidated statements of income (loss) and
comprehensive income (loss), changes in shareholder’s equity, and cash flows for the years ended
September 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related notes, which comprise a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PwC Tower, 18 York Street, Suite 2600, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 0B2
T: +1 416 863 1133, F: +1 416 365 8215, www.pwc.com/ca
“PwC” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at September 30, 2012 and 2011 and October 1, 2010 and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
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ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands of United States dollars)

As at
September
30, 2012
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 5)
Restricted cash (note 6)
Concentrate and dore sales receivable (note 7)
Value added taxes and other receivables and
prepaid expenses
Inventory (note 8)
Income tax receivable

$

Long term value-added taxes and other receivables
Long-term restricted cash (note 6)
Reclamation bonds (note 6)
Property, plant and equipment (note 9)
$
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank debt (note 11)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 10)
Income taxes payable (note 23)
Short-term debt (note 12)
Current portion of long-term debt (note 12)
Current portion of obligations under finance
leases (note 13)
Current portion of financial instruments (note 15)

$

Long-term debt (note 12)
Obligations under finance leases (note 13)
Decommissioning liabilities (note 14)
Financial instruments (note 15)
Provision for statutory labour obligations (note 16)
Deferred income tax liability (note 23)
Long-term compensation (note19(b))
Long-term warrants
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital (note 17)
Contributed surplus
Retained earnings

13,200
16,783
10,052

As at
September
30, 2011
(note 31)

$

12,244
2,682

As at
October 1,
2010
(note 31)

$

13,035
16,404

12,078
10,280

69,474

37,284

10,992
6,226
79
29,244

7,554
1,616
9,647
197,843
286,134

2,756
2,275
10,074
187,568
239,957

753
3,287
123,569
156,853

7,581
34,873
5,244
4,171
11,917

$

$

6,417
21,778
35
9,346

$

$

2,002
1,717
41,295

975
21,119

44,706
558
7,851
23,847
2,832
5,432
173
167
160,320

38,471
2,177
7,900
10,619
2,349
8,634
1,050
112,495

833
1,547
7,919
2,571
12,770
1,860
48,619

116,148
2,953
6,713
125,814
286,134

115,930
2,466
9,066
127,462
239,957

76,227
1,635
30,372
108,234
156,853

Approved by the Board of Directors:
Director

[signed] Robert Mitchell
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3,049
15,346
1,749

1,486
9,482
74,754

$
$
$
Commitments and contingencies (note 25)
The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

[signed] William C. Williams

11,947
-

Director

ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
(In thousands of United States dollars except per share amounts)

Years ended
September 30,
2012
2011
(note 31)
Revenue

$

Cost of sales
Mining costs (note 20)
Depreciation and amortization

140,917

$

25,085

83,574
15,017
98,591

18,290
4,079
22,369

Gross margin

42,326

2,716

Expenses
General and administrative (note 21)
Exploration
Community relations
Other (income) expense
Debenture conversion expense (note 25)
Finance costs (note 22)
Expenses before financial instrument loss

7,084
160
528
225
3,132
5,320
16,449

11,664
88
527
392
1,037
13,708

26,095

13,611

(218)

(24,603)

5,717
(3,582)
2,135

748
(4,045)
(3,297)

Financial instrument loss (note 15)
Loss before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Current income taxes (note 23)
Deferred income taxes (recovery) (note 23)
Net loss and comprehensive loss

$

(2,353)

$

(21,306)

Loss per share (note 24)
Basic
Diluted

$
$

(0.02)
(0.02)

$
$

(0.18)
(0.18)

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
(In thousands of United States dollars)

Share
Capital
Balance, October 1, 2010 (note 31)
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation
Stock-based consideration
Public offering
Bridge loan conversion
Private placement
Net loss
Balance September 30, 2011 (note 31)

Balance, September 30, 2011
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation
Net loss
Balance September 30, 2012

$

$

76,227
1,393
5,214
15,485
15,225
2,386
115,930

Share
Capital
$ 115,930
218
$ 116,148

Contributed
Surplus
$

$

$

$

1,635
(441)
1,272
2,466

Contributed
Surplus
2,466
(71)
558
2,953

Retained
Earnings
$

$

$

$

30,372
-

(21,306)
9,066

Retained
Earnings
9,066
(2,353)
6,713

Total
$

$

$

$

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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108,234
952
1,272
5,214
15,485
15,225
2,386
(21,306)
127,462

Total
127,462
147
558
(2,353)
125,814

ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands of United States dollars)
Years ended
September 30,
2012
2011
(note 31)
Operating activities
Net income (loss)
Depreciation and amortization
Accretion
Amortization of deferred financing fees
Stock-based compensation
Stock-based consideration
Warrants
Long-term compensation
Deferred income taxes (recovery)
Provision for statutory labour obligations
Foreign exchange
Financial instrument unrealized loss (note 15)

$

Changes in non-cash working capital
Concentrate and dore sales receivable
Value added taxes receivable and prepaids
Inventory
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Decommissioning liabilities
Income taxes payable
Cash provided (used) in operating activities
Financing activities
Increase in bank debt
Proceeds from short-term debt (note12)
Proceeds from long-term debt (note 12)
Financing fees (note 12)
Repayment of short and long-term debt (note 12)
Exercise of stock options
Settlement of long term compensation
Issue of common shares, net of share issue costs (note 11)
Investing activities
Capital expenditures
Restricted cash and reclamation bonds

Change in cash
Cash, beginning of the period
Effect of exchange rate change on cash held in foreign
currencies

(2,353)
15,222
604
- 718
558
167
(214)
(3,582)
483
680
20,993
33,276

$

(21,306)
4,152
349
1,272
5,214
(431)
(4,045)
(222)
418
12,336
(2,263)

-(7,370)
(1,105)
2,067
9,628
5,209
41,705

-(2,682)
(3,842)
(4,054)
146
(42)
114
(12,623)

- 1,164
6,500
13,000
(373)
(6,817)
147
(430)
13,191

3,368
50,170
(4,186)
(1,768)
952
(32)
33,053
81,557

(37,718)
(16,155)
(53,873)

(59,819)
(8,735)
(68,554)

1,023
12,244

380
11,947

(67)

(83)

Cash, end of period

$

13,200

$

12,244

Income taxes paid
Interest paid

$
$

167
3,839

$
$

417
893

Amounts paid for interest and income taxes are included in cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statement of
cash flows.
The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements
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ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012
(In thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise noted)
1.

Nature of operations and corporate information

Orvana Minerals Corp. (the "Company" or "Orvana") is a Canadian mining and exploration company involved in the
evaluation, development and mining of precious and base metal deposits. The Company owns and operates the El
Valle-Boinás/Carlés Mine (the “EVBC Mine in pain which is held indirectly through its wholly-owned subsidiary
inbauri spa a .L.U. ("Kinbauri") and the Don Mario Upper Mineralized Zone Mine (the “UMZ Mine” and property in
eastern Bolivia which is held indirectly through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Empresa Minera Paititi S.A. ("EMIPA"). In
addition, the Company holds mineral leases in the state of Michigan, USA, referred to as the Copperwood Project
which is held indirectly through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Orvana Resources US Corp. ("Orvana Resources").
The Company is controlled by Fabulosa Mines Limited (“Fabulosa” which holds 51.9% of the Company’s common
shares. The Company’s ultimate controlling party is the Oslo Trust, which controls Fabulosa.
The Company’s principal place of business is 181 University Avenue, Suite 1901, Toronto, Ontario, Canada. The
Company is incorporated under the laws of Ontario, Canada and its common shares are listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange ("TSX") under the symbol TSX:ORV.
2.

Basis of preparation and adoption of IFRS

The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
as defined in the Handbook of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA Handbook” . In 2010, the CICA
Handbook was revised to incorporate International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFR ” as issued by the
International Accounting tandards Board (“IASB” and to require publicly accountable enterprises to apply these
standards effective for years beginning on or after January 1, 2011. Accordingly, these are the Company’s first annual
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB. In these financial
statements the term “Canadian GAAP” refers to Canadian GAAP before the adoption of IFRS.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with IFRS. Subject to certain transition
elections and exceptions disclosed in note 31, the Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in
the preparation of its opening IFRS statement of financial position at October 1, 2011 throughout all periods presented,
as if these policies had always been in effect. Note 31 discloses the impact of the transition to IFRS on the company's
reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows, including the nature and effect of significant changes
in accounting policies from those used in the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
September 30, 2011 prepared under Canadian GAAP.
These consolidated financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2012 were approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company on December 6, 2012.
3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of
financial instrument including warrants and stock options, which are measured at fair value.

8

ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012
(In thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise noted)
(b) Principles of consolidation
The financial statements consolidate the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Intercompany transactions, balances, income and expenses, and profits and losses are eliminated.
Wholly-owned subsidiaries:
Operating companies:
Empresa Minera Paititi S.A. ("EMIPA")
Kinbauri spa a S.L. ("Kinbauri")
Orvana Resources US Corp. ("Orvana Resources")
Non-operating companies:
Orvana Minerals Asturias Corp. ("Orvana Asturias")
Orvana Cyprus Limited
Orvana Sweden International AB
Orvana Pacific Minerals Corp.
Minera El Alto S.A.
Minera Orvana Peru S.A.
Clarendon Mining Limited
Minera Orvana Mexico S.A. de C.V.
(c) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
(d) Foreign currency translation
i.

Functional and presentation currency
The Company’s functional and presentation currency is the United tates dollar. Functional currency is also
determined for each of the Company’s subsidiaries and items included in the financial statements of the
subsidiary are measured using that functional currency. The functional currency of all of the Company’s
subsidiaries has also been determined to be the United States dollar.

ii.

Transactions and balances
Monetary assets and liabilities not denominated in the functional currency are translated at the period end rates
of exchange. Significant transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction, other income and
expense transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency
using the average exchange rates from the previous month. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in the statement of loss.
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ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012
(In thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise noted)
(e) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in the bank and short-term highly liquid deposits with original maturities
of 90 days or less. Cash that is held in escrow, or otherwise restricted from use, is excluded and is reported
separately from cash and cash equivalents.
(f)

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
At initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
i. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets and liabilities are classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of trading in
the short-term. Derivatives are also included in this category unless they are designated as hedges. Financial
instruments in this category are recognized initially and subsequently at fair value. Transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of loss. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
presented in the consolidated statement of loss within “financial instrument gains and losses (net)” in the period
in which they arise.
ii. Loans and receivables:
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. The Company’s loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents
restricted cash, concentrate and dore receivables, and reclamation bonds and are included in assets. Loans
and receivables are initially recognized at the amount expected to be received, less, when material, a discount
to reduce the loans and receivables to fair value. Subsequently, loans and receivables are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

iii. Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued liabilities, bank debt, long-term
debt and obligations under finance leases. Accounts payable are recognized at the amount required to be
paid. Bank debt, long-term debt and obligations under finance leases are recognized initially at fair value, net of
any transaction costs incurred, and subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. These
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within twelve months. Otherwise, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of an instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the instrument to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012
(In thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise noted)
(g) Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset (other
than a financial asset classified as fair value through profit or loss) is impaired.
The criteria use to determine if objective evidence of an impairment loss include:
i. Significant financial difficulty of the obligor;
ii. Delinquencies in interest or principal payments; and
iii. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
For equity securities, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets could be impaired.
If such evidence exists, the Company recognizes an impairment loss, as follows:
i.

ii.

iii.

Financial assets carried as amortized cost: The loss is the difference between the amortized cost of the loan or
receivable and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted using the instrument’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced by this amount either directly or indirectly
through the use of an allowance account.
Available-for-sale financial assets: the impairment loss is the difference between the original cost of the asset
and its fair value at the measurement date, less impairment losses previously recognized in the statement of
loss. This amount represents the loss in accumulated other comprehensive income that is re-classified to net
income.
Impairment losses on financial assets carried at amortized cost and available-for-sale debt instruments are
reversed in subsequent periods if the amount of the loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event after the impairment was recognized. Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
instruments are not reversed.

(h) Inventories
Gold inventory, which consists of gold bullion and gold in circuit, gold-copper concentrate inventory and ore stock
pile inventory are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Material and supplies inventory is stated at
the lower of average cost and replacement cost.
(i)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of
loss during the period in which they occur.
Effective from the point that they are ready for their intended use, plant and equipment; furniture and equipment;
equipment under finance leases; corporate equipment and mineral properties are amortized on a straight line
basis or using the units-of production method over the shorter of the estimated economic life of the asset or
mineral property. The method of depreciation is determined based on that which best represents the use of the
assets.
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ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012
(In thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise noted)
The reserve and resource estimates for each operation are the prime determinants of the life of a mine. In
general, an ore body where a mineralization is reasonably well defined is amortized over its proven and probable
mineral reserves. Non reserve material may be included in the depreciation calculations in limited circumstances
where there is a high degree of confidence in economic extraction. Changes in the estimate of mineral reserves
and resources will result in changes to depreciation and will be accounted for on a prospective basis over the
remaining life of the operation.
(j) Exploration and development
Acquired mineral properties are recognized at cost, or if acquired as part of a business combination, at fair value
at the date of acquisition. Exploration expenditures are capitalized once management has determined that there is
a reasonable expectation of economic extraction of minerals from the property. Mineral properties under
exploration are reclassified to mineral properties under development when technical feasibility and commercial
viability of the property can be demonstrated. Expenditures directly attributable to the development of the property
are capitalized.
(k) Mineral properties in development and production
Mineral properties in development and production are classified as property, plant and equipment. The Company
assesses each mine development project to determine when a mine has advanced to the production stage. The
criteria used to assess the start date are determined based on the nature of each mine development project, such
as the complexity of a plant and its location. The Company considers various relevant criteria to assess when a
mine is substantially complete and ready for its intended use and has advanced to the production stage. The
criteria considered include: (1) the completion of a reasonable period of testing of mine plant and equipment; (2)
the ability to produce materials in saleable form (within specifications); and (3) the ability to sustain ongoing
production of minerals. When a mine construction project has advanced into the production stage, the
capitalization of certain mine construction costs cease and costs are either included in inventory or expensed,
except for sustaining capital costs related to property, plant and equipment and underground mine development or
reserve development.
(l)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Property, plant and equipment, including intangible assets are tested for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. For the purpose of measuring
recoverable amounts, assets are group at the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units or “CGU” . The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use (being the present value of the expected future cash flows of the relevant asset of CGU, as
determined by management). If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of loss.
At each financial position reporting date the carrying amounts of the Company’s assets including mineral
properties under exploration and mineral properties under development, are reviewed to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment, if any.
An impairment loss, excluding those recognized in goodwill, is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012
(In thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise noted)
(m) Other liabilities
Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognized in other liabilities when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period, and are discounted when the effect is material.
(n) Decommissioning liabilities
The Company recognizes a decommissioning liability when a legal or constructive obligation exists to dismantle,
remove or restore its assets, including any obligation to rehabilitate environmental damage on its mineral
properties. Decommissioning liabilities are recognized as incurred. Decommissioning liabilities are discounted
using a rate reflecting risks specific to the liability, and the unwinding of the discount is included in finance costs.
At the time of establishing the liability, a corresponding asset is capitalized and is depreciated over future
production from the mining property to which it relates. The liabilities are reviewed on a regular basis for changes
in cost estimates, discount rates and operating lives.
(o) Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current and deferred tax. Current tax represents the expected tax payable on taxable
income for the year using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustments to tax payable related to prior years.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the substantively enacted tax rates and laws that will be in
effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent that
realization is considered probable. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they are from the same
jurisdiction.
(p) Revenue recognition
For the sale of gold-copper concentrate, the revenue recognition criteria is typically met upon delivery of
concentrate at certain destinations as specified in the contracts and payment of the provisional invoice by the
buyer. Provisionally priced contracts contain embedded derivatives meeting separate recognition criteria. Sales of
gold-copper concentrate are based on specific sales agreements and are subject to adjustment upon final
settlement of shipment weights, assays and metal prices, including provisions where final metal prices are
determined by quoted market prices in a period subsequent to the date of sale. Revenues are recorded at the
time of sale based on spot prices or forward prices for the expected date of final settlement. In certain sales, the
price for the sale is set and does not vary. Subsequent variations to weights, assays and metal prices are
recognized in revenue each period end and in the period of final settlement. Refining and treatment charges are
netted against revenues from concentrate sales. The Company’s revenue is dependent on three contracts with offtake customers, each of whom comprise more than 10% of revenue.
Revenue from gold dore is recognized upon receipt of payment and notification of delivery to the customer. Sales
of gold dore are based on specific sales agreements and are subject to adjustment upon final settlement of
shipment weights, assays and metal prices.
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ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012
(In thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise noted)
(q) Cost of sales
Cost of sales consists of mining costs, which include personnel costs, an allocation of site general and
administrative costs, energy cost (principally diesel fuel and electricity); maintenance and repair costs; operating
supplies; external services; costs related to royalty expenses for the period; and depreciation and amortization. All
costs include any impairment to reduce inventory to net realizable value.
(r)

Share-based compensation
Directors and senior executives of the Company participate in long-term compensation plans under which they are
eligible to receive Company common shares or the equivalent cash amount. The plans consist of a stock option
plan, a restricted share unit plan and a deferred share unit plan.
Awards under the compensation plans are measured at fair value on the date of grant and recorded as
compensation expense in the statements of loss over the vesting period. For awards with graded vesting, the fair
value of each tranche is recognized over its respective vesting period. The Company re-assesses, at the end of
each reporting period, its estimates of the number of awards that are expected to vest and recognizes the impact
of the revisions in the statement of loss.
i)

Stock Options
As stock option awards are settled in common shares of the Company, the obligations under the stock option
plan are included in contributed surplus within shareholders’ equity. The fair value of stock options is
determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model.

ii)

Restricted share units (“R Us” and deferred share units (“D Us”
RSUs and DSUs are settled in cash, and therefore, the obligations under these plans are recorded as a
liability. The liability for the cash-settled awards is adjusted to fair value each reporting date with the changes
recorded as long-term compensation expense under general and administrative expense. The fair value of
RSUs and DSUs is determined based on the quoted market price of Company’s common shares at the
reporting date.

(s) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the "treasury stock method". The
treasury stock method assumes that all "in the money" option proceeds are used to purchase common shares of
the Company at the average market price during the period.
(t)

Leases
Leases are classified as either finance or operating leases. Finance leases are those that substantially transfer the
benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee.
Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Company at the lower of the fair value at the
inception of the lease or the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability is
recognized as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining liability. Finance charges
are charged to the statement of loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalized.
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Total payments under operating leases are expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Incentives received upon entry into an operating lease are recognized straight-line over the lease term.
(u) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are added to the cost
of the assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are
those that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognized as interest expense in the statement of loss in the period in which they are incurred.
(v) Government grants
Government grants are recognized at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants related to additions
or betterments to property, plant and equipment are recognized as credits against the carrying values of the
related assets, and subsequently recognized in net earnings over the useful lives of the related assets as
reductions to the resulting depreciation expense. A government grant of €4 995 378 ($6,459) was awarded to the
Company by the Economic Development Institute of the Principality of Asturias in Spain for business projects
generating employment that promote alternative development of mining areas for the periods of 2007 through
2012. At this time, the Company expects to receive the payment of such grant over a three-year period.
(w) Future changes to accounting standards
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In November 2009, the International Accounting Standards Board issued, and subsequently revised in October
2010 IFR 9 Financial Instruments (“IFR 9” as a first phase in its ongoing project to replace IA 39. IFR 9
which is to be applied retrospectively, is effective beginning with the Company’s interim financial statements for
the quarter ended December 31, 2016.
IFRS 9 uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost or fair value,
replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39. The approach in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial
instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. The new standard also requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the multiple impairment
methods in IAS 39. The standard also adds guidance on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
Management has not yet determined the potential impact the adoption of IFR 9 will have on the Company’s
financial statements.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
In May 2011 the IA B issued IFR 13 Fair Value Measurement (“IFR 13” . IFR 13 which is to be applied
prospectively is effective beginning with the Company’s interim financial statements for the quarter ended
December 31, 2013. IFRS 13 defines fair value, provides a framework for measuring fair value and includes
disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. IFRS 13 will be applied in most cases when another IFRS
requires (or permits) fair value measurement. Management has not yet determined the potential impact that the
adoption of IFR 13 will have on the Company’s financial statements.
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
In October 2011, the IASB issued IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a urface Mine (“IFRIC
20” . IFRIC 20 provides guidance on the accounting for the costs of stripping activity in the production phase of
surface mining when the following two benefits accrue to the entity from the stripping activity: (i) useable ore that
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can be used to produce inventory, and (ii) improved access to further quantities of material that will be mined in
future periods. IFRIC 20 must be applied starting with the Company’s interim financial statements for the quarter
ended December 31, 2013. The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting IFRIC 20 on its
consolidated financial statements.
Other
In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, effective beginning with
the Company’s interim financial statements for the quarter ended December 31 2013. The Company does not
believe the changes resulting from these amendments are relevant to its financial statements.
In May 2011, the IASB issued IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS
12 Disclosure of Interests in Other ntities. These new standards are effective for the Company’s interim financial
statements for the quarter ended December 31, 2013. The Company does not believe the changes resulting from
these new standards are relevant to its financial statements.
In June 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 19 Employee
Benefits effective beginning with the Company’s interim financial statements for the quarter ended December 31,
2013. The Company does not believe the changes resulting from these amendments are relevant to its financial
statements.
In December 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures related to offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities. These
amendments are effective for the Company’s interim financial statements for the quarter ended December 31
2014. The Company does not believe the changes resulting from these amendments will have a significant impact
on its non-consolidated financial statements.
4.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively from the period in which the estimates are revised. The following are the key estimate and
assumption uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year.
(a) Impairment of non-financial assets
When there are indications that an asset may be impaired the Company is required to estimate the asset’s
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the greater of value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
Determining the value in use requires the Company to estimate expected future cash flows associated with the
assets and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. No impairments of non-financial assets
have been recorded for the year ended September 30, 2012 (September 30, 2011 – Nil).
(b) Decommissioning liabilities
Management is required to make significant estimates and assumptions in determining the Company’s ultimate
obligation for decommissioning liabilities. There are numerous factors that will affect the ultimate liability payable
including the extent and costs of rehabilitation activities, technological changes, regulatory changes, cost
increases, and changes in discount rates. Management is also required to apply judgment in determining whether
any legal or constructive obligation exist to dismantle, remove or restore its assets, including any obligation to
rehabilitate environmental damage on its mineral properties.
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As at September 30, 2012, the Company had recognized $7,851 of decommissioning liabilities (September 30,
2011 - $7,900 and October 1, 2010 - $7,919).
(c) Depreciation and amortization
In order to determine the amount of depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment to be charged
to income, management must make estimates of the useful life of the asset and, for the units-of-production
method of depreciation, the ore tonnage available for processing for the mineral properties in production or a
portion thereof. As at September 30, 2012, the Company had $197,843 (September 30, 2011 - $187,568) of
property plant and equipment subject to depreciation and amortization.
(d) Stock-based compensation
Management is required to make certain estimates when determining the fair value of stock options awards, and
the number of awards that are expected to vest. The fair value of stock options is determined using a BlackScholes option pricing model, incorporating assumptions regarding interest rates, expected life of the options and
expected volatility of the market price of the Company’s common shares. These estimates affect the amount
recognized as stock-based compensation in the statement of loss. For the year ended September 30, 2012 the
Company recognized approximately $558 of stock-based compensation expense (September 30, 2010 - $1,272).
(e) Warrants
The Company’s outstanding warrants are exercisable upon the exercise of certain outstanding options to purchase
common shares of the Company. Management is required to make certain estimates when determining the fair
value of warrants. The fair value of the warrants are determined using a Black-Scholes pricing model,
incorporating assumptions regarding interest rates, expected life of the options and expected volatility of the
market price of the Company’s common shares. These estimates affect the amount recognized as warrant
expense in the statement of loss. For the year ended September 30, 2012, the Company recognized
approximately $167 for the fair value of exercisable warrants (September 30, 2011 - nil).
(f) Mineral properties
Exploration expenditures are capitalized once management has determined that there is a reasonable expectation
of economic extraction of minerals from the property. Management is required to apply judgment in determining
the appropriate time to commence capitalization of exploration expenditures.
Management is also required to apply judgment in determining whether technical feasibility and commercial
viability can be demonstrated for the mineral properties. Once technical feasibility and commercial viability of a
property can be demonstrated, it is reclassified from mineral properties under exploration to mineral properties
under development.
(g) Income taxes
Judgment is required in determining whether deferred tax assets are recognized. Deferred tax assets, including
those arising from unutilized tax losses require management to assess the likelihood that the Company will
generate taxable earnings in future periods, in order to utilize recognized deferred tax assets. As at September 30,
2012, the Company recognized $5,432 of net deferred tax liabilities (September 30, 2011 - $8,634 and October 1,
2010 - $12,770).
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(h) Functional currency
Management applies judgment in assessing the functional currency of its subsidiaries, particularly where labour
and mining costs are paid in more than one currency.
5.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2012 were $13,200 (September 30, 2011 - $12,244 and October 1, 2010
- $11,947). The terms of a loan agreement (the “ VBC Loan” with a third-party lender (the “ VBC Lender” require
the deposit of certain cash generated from operating activities of Kinbauri into restricted cash accounts and restricts
the distribution of cash outside of Kinbauri in certain circumstances.
6.

Restricted cash and reclamation bonds

Restricted cash
Restricted cash as at September 30, 2012 was $16,783 (September 30, 2011 – nil), and included restricted cash on
deposit with the EVBC Lender for approximately $8,806 for a debt service reserve for future principal and interest loan
payments, a potential future reclamation bond payment of approximately $6,465 (€5 000 000 , a reserve for future
royalty payments of $884 and cash on deposit of $628 with local banks in favour of the Spanish government pending
audit by the government of compliance with the terms of certain capital investment subsidies received by Kinbauri.
Long-term restricted cash includes approximately $1,616 (September 30, 2011 - $2,275 and October 1, 2010 - $753)
on deposit with a local bank in favour of the Bolivian government pending the appeal of a value added taxes (“VAT”
audit. The VAT audit relates to an audit by the Bolivia National Tax Service, for which EMIPA filed a tax lawsuit in
January 2011 before the Bolivian Supreme Court. As of the date of these statements, the matter remains unresolved.
The prior year balance of $2,275 included the cash on deposit of $753 in favour of the Spanish government related to
subsidies received by Kinbauri, which are included in the current restricted cash detailed above.
Reclamation bonds
At September 30, 2012 cash backing these reclamation bonds held in a Spanish financial institution is $9,647
(September 30, 2011 - $10,074 and October 1, 2010 - $3,287) and is expected to be released after all reclamation
work has been completed. Prior to its acquisition by Kinbauri, the EVBC Mine had been shut down by its then owner
and remediation measures required were completed. On inbauri’s acquisition of the VBC Mine a reclamation bond
of €894 684 was deposited as required by panish mining regulations. In fiscal 2010 and 2011, additional reclamation
bonds in the amounts of €1 521 960 and €5 000 000 respectively were deposited by Kinbauri relating to its new
tailings facility with an additional €5 000 000 which may have to be deposited by the Kinbauri.
7.

Concentrate and dore receivables
September 30,
2012

Concentrate receivables

$
$

10,052
10,052
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September 30,
2011
$
$

2,682
2,682

October 1, 2010

$
$

-
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8.

Inventory

Ore in stockpiles
In-process
Gold dore
Concentrate
Materials and supplies

$

$

9.

September 30,
2012
2,151
37
145
2,657
11,414
16,404

$

$

September 30,
2011
753
191
3,125
6,211
10,280

October 1, 2010
$

753
5,473
6,226

$

Property, plant and equipment

Land

Plant and
equipment

Furniture
and
equipment

Equipment
under
finance lease

Mineral
properties
in
production

Mineral
properties
in
exploration
and
evaluation

Total

At October 1, 2010
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value,
October 1, 2010

$ 1,910
-

$80,749
(30,580)

$ 564
(122)

$4,574
-

$59,797
-

$6,677
-

$154,271
(30,702)

1,910

50,169

442

4,574

59,797

6,677

123,569

677

22,542
(7,935)

1,241
(73)

3,941
(642)

40,401
(1,104)

4,951
-

73,753
(9,754)

2,587

64,776

1,610

7,873

99,094

11,628

187,568

1,042
-

9,567
(5,615)

203
(205)

(852)

16,951
(6,459)
(9,154)

4,797
-

32,560
(6,459)
(15,826)

$3,629

$68,728

$1,608

$7,021

$100,432

$16,425

$197,843

16,425

Additions
Depreciation
Net book value,
September 30, 2011
Additions
Government grant
Depreciation(1)
Net book value,
September 30, 2012

-

Total cost

3,629

112,858

2,008

8,515

110,690

Total accumulated depreciation

-

(44,130)

(400)

(1,494)

(10,258)

$68,728

$1,608

$7,021

$100,432

Net book value,
September 30, 2012
(1)

$3,629

Depreciation includes amounts capitalized to mineral properties.
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Mineral properties in production:
a)

UMZ Mine (Bolivia)
Through its wholly-owned subsidiary, EMIPA, the Company owns and operates the UMZ Mine. The UMZ Mine is
part of the Don Mario District comprising ten mineral concessions located in south eastern Bolivia.
The Company developed the UMZ Mine as an open pit copper-gold-silver deposit. Certain previously installed
mine equipment is being utilized for the UMZ Mine. Commercial production commenced on January 1, 2012.

b)

EVBC Mine (Spain)
Orvana acquired the EVBC Mine in Spain in August 2009 through the acquisition of Kinbauri Gold Corp. The
EVBC gold-copper-silver Mine is located in the Rio Narcea Gold Belt in northern Spain. The Company
commenced commercial production on August 1, 2011 and the corresponding asset was reclassified to mineral
properties in production.
The EVBC mineral properties in production were reduced an amount with respect to a government subsidy grant
of $6 459 (€4 995 378 for the grant receivable recorded during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012. This grant is
provided by the Economic Development Institute of the Principality of Asturias to business projects generating
employment that promote alternative development of mining areas for the periods of 2007 through 2012. Kinbauri
has completed the required investment and has submitted its application for the receipt of this grant. The grant
receivable is collectable by Kinbauri over a three year period from the Spanish government in respect of the
completed development of the EVBC Mine.

Mineral properties in exploration and evaluation:
Copperwood Project (Michigan, USA)
The Company is currently evaluating the Copperwood Project in Michigan and the costs associated with this
evaluation are included in mineral properties under exploration and evaluation. Orvana Resources, entered into
mineral leases within the “Western yncline” which is located in the Upper Peninsula of the tate of Michigan.
Under the mineral leases, in consideration for annual lease payments, Orvana Resources will have mineral rights
until the later of the 20th anniversary of the date of the lease or the date Orvana Resources ceases to be actively
engaged in development, mining, or related operations on the property. The mineral leases may be terminated by
Orvana Resources on 60 days’ notice.
Orvana Resources also entered into an agreement on August 23, 2010 to purchase land adjacent to the
Copperwood Project to facilitate road access to the site and additional space for mining infrastructure. The
purchase price was $1,900 which was fully paid at September 30, 2012. Orvana Resources has the right to put
the property back to the vendor on the same terms as the original purchase up to August 2013, if no mining
activity has taken place.
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10.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accounts payable
Provision for debenture conversion (note 25)
Accrued liabilities

$

$

11.

September 30,
2012
23,591
3,132
8,150
34,873

$

September 30,
2011
$16,380
5,398
21,778

October 1, 2010
$

$

13,679
1,667
15,346

Bank debt

EMIPA has short-term credit facilities with certain Bolivian banks for up to approximately $8,000 payable in 60-180
days from the date of advance with annual interest rates ranging from 7% to 7.5%. Certain of MIPA’s assets are
pledged as security against these loans. As at September 30, 2012, approximately $7,581 (September 30, 2011 $6,417 and October 1, 2010 - $3,049) was drawn under these facilities.
In addition, at September 30, 2012, EMIPA provided bank guarantees to a Bolivian bank amounting to approximately
$633 (September 30, 2011 - $1,897), related to refunded amounts of VAT and natural gas and chemical purchases.
The bank guarantees on the VAT credit notes expire after 120 days and are pending the final approval and audit of
these credit notes by the Bolivian government. EMIPA also has provided guarantees for the purchase of natural gas
from government suppliers that are for one year and are renewed annually and would only be executed by the
government suppliers if EMIPA failed to pay the invoices related to these purchases.
12.

Short-term and Long-term debt

Short-term debt
The Company has a secured demand loan facility (the “Fabulosa Loan” with Fabulosa Mines Limited the Company’s
52% shareholder, in the amount of $11,500. The Company is using proceeds drawn under the Fabulosa Loan for
working capital purposes. Interest on the outstanding principal is calculated at a rate per annum of 12% and is payable
monthly and the Company pays any withholding taxes imposed by Canadian taxing authorities. Subsequent to the end
of fiscal 2012, the repayment terms were amended and principal amounts outstanding under the Fabulosa Loan are
required to be repaid in the minimum amount of $1,000 per month commencing in May 2013. The Fabulosa Loan also
contains covenants that, among other things, require principal repayment in the event of the sale of EMIPA or all or
substantially all of its assets. The Fabulosa Loan is available for draw down until June 30, 2013 and matures on
December 31, 2013.
In the event that, prior to March 1, 2013, Fabulosa requests that Orvana add an additional Orvana director nominated
by Fabulosa and Orvana does not do so within ten business days, the Fabulosa Loan will convert back to a demand
loan. The Fabulosa Loan is secured by, among other things, a general security assignment over present and future
assets of Orvana excluding all amounts owing by Kinbauri to the Company. Concurrently, the Company entered into an
agreement with Fabulosa pursuant to which, for so long as it owns at least 10% of the outstanding Common Shares,
Fabulosa has the right to designate, at any shareholders’ meeting at which directors are to be elected that number of
management’s nominees for election as directors of the Company that is the same proportion as its ownership interest
is of the Common Shares.
During fiscal 2012, with advance notice to Fabulosa, Orvana did not meet certain of its obligations under the Fabulosa
Loan including certain reporting obligations and a cash sweep obligation thereunder. Orvana received a waiver in
respect of one of these obligations and has requested a waiver in respect of the others. At September 30, 2012,
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principal and interest outstanding under this loan was $4,171. Subsequent to the end of the year the Company repaid
$500 against this loan and on December 4, 2012 the Company drew down $2,000 under this facility and amended
certain of the terms of the loan (refer to note 26 – Related party and note 30 – Subsequent Events).
Long-term debt
(a) In October 2010, Kinbauri entered into $50,000 five-year term EVBC Loan. The funds were primarily used to
complete the construction of the EVBC Mine. In February 2012, the EVBC Loan was extended by one year to
September 30, 2016 and increased by $13,844 including $6 500 (€5 000 to fund an environmental bond which may be
required to be posted with governmental authorities in Spain, $3,000 to fund a debt service reserve account to cover
one quarter-year’s debt service charges and the balance for general corporate purposes. To the extent that the
environmental bond is less than $6,500, these funds may be used for general corporate purposes.
The EVBC Loan contains covenants that restrict among other things Orvana’s ability to incur additional indebtedness
and make distributions in certain circumstances, to sell material assets or to carry on business other than one related
to the mining business. During fiscal 2012, due to oversight, Kinbauri was not in compliance with two debt covenants of
the EVBC Loan relating to having certain funds deposited in royalty and debt service reserve accounts. Kinbauri
subsequently received a waiver from the lender under the EVBC Loan in respect of these covenants non-compliance.
The EVBC Loan required gold, copper and Euro/US dollar financial instruments which have already been put in place.
ee “Financial Instruments” below. Orvana is required to maintain certain financial ratios which calculations exclude
the unrealized adjustments resulting from the mark-to-market of the metals and currency derivative instruments
required under the terms thereof. As at September 30, 2012, the Company was in compliance with all covenants of the
loan agreement. The security for the EVBC Loan includes a fixed and floating charge over the assets of Kinbauri and
a pledge by Orvana of all of the shares of Kinbauri. inbauri’s obligations under the EVBC Loan are guaranteed by
Orvana. The interest on the EVBC Loan is Libor plus 4% per annum and management expects the cost of the EVBC
Loan, including fees but excluding the costs associated with the required financial instruments, to average
approximately 5% to 6% per annum, based on current interest rates. Quarterly principal repayments commenced on
July 2, 2012 and $5,792 was paid in principal and interest on this loan during fiscal 2012 and the Company placed on
deposit the next two quarter’s principal and interest payments of $8,806 as restricted cash. Subsequent to the end of
the year on October 2, 2012, the Company repaid $3,448 in principal and interest against this loan from the amount
included in restricted cash at September 30, 2012. The total annual principal repayment required in each fiscal year
ending September 30, expressed as a percentage of the total amount of the EVBC Loan are: 2013-18.7%; 201423.3%; 2015-27.6%; and 2016-25.1%.
(b) On September 29, 2009, EMIPA entered into a credit agreement with a Bolivian bank for $2,500. This facility bears
interest at 7.8% and was payable in equal quarterly instalments over a three-year period. At September 30, 2012, this
loan was repaid.
(c) On October 1, 2010, EMIPA entered into an additional credit agreement with a Bolivian bank for approximately
$170. This facility bears interest at 4.42% and is payable in equal quarterly instalments over a five-year period. At
September 30, 2012, this loan was repaid.
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Minimum long-term debt repayments are as follows:
Long-term debt repayments are as follows at
September 30, 2012:
2013
2014
2015
2016

EVBC Loan
$

Less: current portion
Total – long-term debt
Financing fees
Total

Long-term debt repayments are as follows at
September 30, 2011:
2012
2013
2014
2015

$

$

11,917
14,843
17,637
16,041
60,438
(11,917)
48,521
(3,815)
44,706

$

EVBC Loan

EMIPA Loans
871
38
38
38
985
(871)
114
114

Less: current portion
Total – long-term debt
Financing fees
Total

13.

11,917
14,843
17,637
16,041
60,438
(11,917)
48,521
(3,815)
44,706

Total

8,475
17,583
12,075
12,711
50,844
(8,475)
42,369
(4,012)
38,357

$

$

Total
9,346
17,621
12,113
12,749
51,829
(9,346)
42,483
(4,012)
38,471

$

$

Obligations under finance leases

During fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011, the Company entered into leases with three-year terms to purchase certain mining
equipment at a total cost of approximately $8,515 including deposits of $2,255 paid at the time of purchase. The leases
are repayable in quarterly instalments at annual interest rates of 5.5% to 6.6%. At September 30, 2012, the obligation
outstanding was $2,044 (September 30, 2011 - $4,179). During the year ended September 30, 2012, the Company
made lease payments of approximately $1,598 (September 30, 2011 - $385). Each lease contract contains a bargain
purchase option of €10 per contract.
The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under these finance leases which expire in June 2014:
As at September 30,
Fiscal
2012
2013
2014

$

Amount representing interest at 5.95%
Less: current portion
$

2012
1,550
565
2,115
(71)
2,044
(1,486)
558

The equipment under finance leases is being amortized over the estimated useful life of the assets.
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2011
2,175
1,619
635
4,429
(250)
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(2,002)
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14.

Decommissioning liabilities

Decommissioning liabilities relate to the dismantling of the mine facilities and environmental reclamation of the areas
affected by mining operations. Mine facilities include structures and the tailings dam. Environmental reclamation
requirements include mine water treatment, reforestation and dealing with soil contamination. It is possible that the
Company’s estimates of the ultimate amounts required to decommission its mines could change as a result of changes
in regulations, the extent of environmental remediation required, the means of reclamation, cost estimates or the
estimated remaining ore reserves.
The following table summarizes the changes in decommissioning liabilities during the periods presented:

Balance, beginning of period (note 25)
Revision in estimated cash flows, timing of payments and discount rates
– EVBC Mine
– UMZ Mine

$

Year ended
September 30,
2012
7,900

$

$

(1,383)
730
7,247
604
7,851

$

Closure costs – Don Mario Mine – Las Tojas
Accretion expense

Year ended
September 30,
2011
7,919
7,919
(43)
24
7,900

For the EVBC Mine, the revision in estimated cash flows includes the impact of the change in discount rate, the delay
of the timing of the payments in line with the longer mine life and the impact of the foreign exchange rate of Euros
versus the US dollar.
For the UMZ Mine, the revision in estimated cash flows includes the impact of the change in discount rate and
additional expected remediation costs related to the expansion of the tailings dam.
As at
September
30, 2012
3,691

Balance consists of:
EVBC Mine
UMZ Mine

$
$

(1)

(1)

3,166
7,900

Discount
Rate

$

5,918

5.7%

5,556

2.8%

$

11,474

UMZ Mine
Total

$
$

Undiscounted Cash
Flows Required to
Settle
Decommissioning
Liabilities

At September 30, 2012

EVBC Mine

4,160
7,851

As at
September 30,
2011
4,734

As at
October 1,
2010
4,834
$
$

3,085
7,919

Discounted Cash
Flows Required to
Settle
Decommissioning
Liabilities
$

3,691
4,160

$

7,851

Accretion expense is recorded using the discount interest rates set out above. It is expected that these amounts will be incurred in 2019
through 2022 in respect of the UMZ Mine and the EVBC Mine, respectively.
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Cash held in a Spanish financial institution backing reclamation bonds totaled approximately $9,647 at September 30,
2012 (September 30, 2011 - $10,074 and October 1, 2010 - $3,287) and is expected to be released after all
reclamation work has been completed (refer to note 6).
15.

Financial instruments

Pursuant to the terms of the EVBC Loan, the Company entered into a number of gold, copper, and Euro/US dollar
forward contracts (economic hedges) relating to a portion of the expected gold and copper production from the EVBC
Mine and relating to operating costs of Kinbauri incurred in Euros, while revenue is earned in US dollars.
In connection with the increase in the EVBC Loan, the Company entered into additional financial instruments in respect
of 1,400 ounces of gold per month from January 2012 to September 2015. The economic hedge is in the form of a
collar with puts at US$1,550.00 per ounce and calls at US$1,855.00 per ounce. The Company has the right but not the
obligation to sell gold under the hedge at US$1,550.00 per ounce. At prices over US$1,855.00 per ounce, the
Company will be required to sell the gold under the hedge at US$1,855.00 per ounce.
In addition, on February 15, 2012 the Company entered into additional gold collar hedges in connection with an
increase in the EVBC Loan of 200 ounces of gold per month from July 2012 to September 2015 with puts at $1,550.00
per ounce and calls at $1,855.00 per ounce and 1,600 ounces per month from October 2015 to September 2016, with
puts at US$1,250.00 per ounce and calls at US$2,270.00 per ounce.
Changes in the fair value of financial instruments are recognized through earnings. The mark-to-market fair value of all
contracts is based on independently provided market rates and determined using standard valuation techniques,
including the impact of counterparty risk.
For the year ended September 30, 2012 the loss resulting from the settlement of financial instruments that matured
during fiscal 2012 and mark-to market fair valuation of these contracts was $26,095 (a loss at September 30, 2011 $13,611) and related deferred income tax recovery was $7,829 (recovery at September 30, 2011 - $4,083).
The Company recorded losses for the cash settlement of contracts that matured during the year ended September 30,
2012 of $5,102 (September 30, 2011 – $1,275).
For the year ended September 30,

2012

2011

Change in unrealized fair value during the period
Realized cash settlements of derivative instruments

$

20,993
5,102

$

12,336
1,275

Derivatives loss

$

26,095

$

13,611
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Financial instruments included in the balance sheet are comprised of:

Contract
Rate/Price

As at September 30, 2012:
Fair value of currency contracts – US/Euro
Fair value of copper forwards per tonne
Fair value of gold forwards per ounce

Avg. Forward
Rate/Price

Fair Value

$1.38

$1.29

$(4,334)

$7,260

$8,183

(9,097)

$1,333.70

$1,791.00

(13,942)

-

-

(5,956)

Fair value of gold collars
Total fair value of derivative instruments at September 30, 2012

$(33,329)

Less: current portion

9,482

Total non-current derivative instruments

$(23,847)

The following table summarizes the gold, copper and foreign exchange forward contracts:
As at
September 30,
2013
Gold forwards:
Ounces
Price per ounce
Copper forwards:
Tonnes
Price per tonne
Price per pound
US dollar/Euro forwards:
Amount in U ($ 000’s
Contracted Average Euro/US dollar exchange rate

As at
September 30,
2012

As at
September 30,
2011

As at
October 1,
2010

21,093.75
$1,333.70

30,468.75
$1,333.70

37,500
$1,333.70

-

6,322.25
7,260.00
$3.29

9,825.75
7,260.00
$3.29

12,935
7,260.00
$3.29

-

45,000
$1.38

65,000
$1.38

80,000
$1.38

-

The following table summarizes the gold puts and call contracts outstanding:

Gold puts (October 2012 to September 2015:
Ounces
Price per ounce
Gold calls (October 2012 to September 2015):
Ounces
Price per ounce
Gold puts (October 2015 to September 2016):
Ounces
Price per ounce
Gold calls (October 2015 to September 2016):
Ounces
Price per ounce

As at
September 30,
2013

As at
September 30,
2012

38,400
$1,550.00

57,600
$1,550.00

-

-

38,400
$1,855.00

57,600
$1,855.00

-

-

19,200
$1.250.00

19,200
$1,250.00

-

-

19,200
$2,270.00

19,200
$2,270.00

-

-
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16.

Statutory labour obligations

Under Bolivian law, EMIPA has an obligation to make payments to employees in the amount of one month’s wages for
each year of service. The employee can elect to receive payment after five years of service in the amount of five
months of wages while continuing employment with EMIPA. At September 30, 2012, the obligation outstanding for
these payments was $2,832 (September 30, 2011 - $2,349 and October 1, 2010 - $2,571). In accordance with IFRS,
this obligation was fair valued using an actuarial valuation to determine the present value of the future payments on
this obligation, taking into consideration employee turnover, historical record of employees cashing out; salary
increases and the local inflation rate projected at 5%. These amounts were discounted at 4% to the present valued
based on the mine life of the UMZ Mine.
17.

Share capital

(a)

Authorized - unlimited number of common shares

(b)

Common shares issued
Number of
common shares
116,318,172
1,035,000
1,969,999
8,500,000
7,319,969
1,180,031
136,323,171
250,000
136,573,171

Balance, October 1, 2010
Exercise of stock options
Fair value assigned to exercise of stock options
Common shares issued to Fabulosa Mines Limited (note 26)
Public offering
Bridge loan conversion – Fabulosa Mines Limited (note 26)
Common shares issued to Fabulosa Mines Limited (note 26)
Balance, September 30, 2011
Exercise of stock options
Transfer of fair value from contributed surplus
Balance, September 30, 2012

$

$

$

Stated
Value
76,227
952
441
5,214
15,485
15,225
2,386
115,930
147
71
116,148

(i)

Under an agreement entered into on September 12, 2001 in connection with the initial investment in Orvana by
a then affiliate of Fabulosa, Fabulosa had a pre-emptive right to acquire additional common shares on a onefor-one basis in connection with the issuance of common shares to parties other than Fabulosa. Orvana and
Fabulosa agreed to terminate the prior agreement by entering into an agreement under which Fabulosa’s
existing pre-emptive rights to acquire common shares were amended. As consideration for past services,
Orvana issued to Fabulosa 1,969,999 common shares (refer to note 26 - Related party). In addition, the
Company also issued five-year warrants to purchase up to 2,725,000 common shares.

(ii)

On July 27, 2011 the Company entered into an underwriting agreement to sell 8,500,000 common shares of
the Company at a price of C$2.00 per common share for aggregate gross proceeds of C$17,000. This
transaction closed on August 11, 2011. Net proceeds after deduction of issuance costs were $15,485.

(iii)

Concurrent with the closing of the public offering, the Company repaid in full the outstanding amount of a
related party bridge loan of $15,225, including accrued interest, by issuing 7,319,969 common shares to
Fabulosa at the same price and on the same terms as those issued under the public offering. Fabulosa also
acquired 1,180,031 common shares, on a private placement basis at a price of C$2.00 per common share. As
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a result, Fabulosa acquired a total of 8,500,000 common shares when combined with the common shares
issued to it on repayment of the bridge loan (refer to note 26 - Related party).
(c)

Warrants

The Company issued to Fabulosa five-year warrants to purchase up to 2,725,000 common shares. The warrants will
be exercisable only upon the issuance of, and in numbers equal to the number of common shares issuable upon the
exercise of any of Orvana’s outstanding stock options as of May 16 2011. On September 6, 2011 the Company issued
the first tranche of 1,300,000 warrants with an exercise price of C$1.90 with the second tranche of 1,425,000 warrants
issued on March 5, 2012 with an exercise price of C$0.97 (refer to note 23 - Related party). At September 30, 2012,
400,000 stock options were exercised that were outstanding as of May 16, 2011 and accordingly 400,000 warrants
were exercisable. Under Canadian GAAP, the warrants represented a contract to deliver a fixed number of equity
instruments in exchange for a fixed amount of foreign currency and were considered equity instruments and were
accounted for at cost. Under IFRS, the warrants have a Canadian dollar exercise price which differs from the
Company’s functional currency. As a result these warrants were treated as a liability and measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized through earnings. The liability for these warrants was valued using the Black Scholes
model and was $167 at September 30, 2012 (September 30, 2011 – Nil).
18.

Compensation of key management

Key management includes directors (executive and non-executive) and senior management of the Company and its
affiliates. The compensation paid or payable to key management and directors for services is shown below:

Years ended
Salaries and short term employee benefits
(1)
Share-based payments
(2)
Termination benefits
Total compensation of key management

$

$

September 30,
2012
1,726
344
320
2,390

$

$

September 30,
2011
1,828
984
2,812

(1)

Share-based payments include the mark-to-market adjustments on RSUs and DSUs.

(2)

Termination benefits include contractual severance payments for the Company’s former CEO who ceased to be an employee of the Company on December 5, 2011.

28

ORVANA MINERALS CORP.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
September 30, 2012
(In thousands of United States Dollars unless otherwise noted)
19.

Share based payments

(a)

Stock options

A summary of the stock option transactions is as follows:

Stock options
Balance, October 1, 2010
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Balance, September 30, 2011
Granted
Exercised
Expired
Forfeited
Balance, September 30, 2012

Weighted Average
Exercise
Price C$

2,680,000
1,030,000
(1,035,000)
(100,000)
2,575,000
1,641,667
(250,000)
(25,000)
(489,998)
3,451,669

$0.91
3.59
0.90
1.06
$1.97
0.93
0.60
0.69
1.50
$1.66

Stock options have been expensed as follows:
Cumulative
expense to
September
30, 2012
Stock-based compensation expense

$

3,647

Remainder
to be
expensed

$

Total
Stock-based
compensation

269

$

3,916

As at September 30, 2012, outstanding and exercisable stock options were as follows:

Fair
value
US$
81
22
40
65
61
255
12
56
1,383
163
284
129
157
11
47
$
2,766
Total vested and unvested stock options
Grant
Date
December 3, 2007
March 3, 2008
March 5, 2009
October 23, 2009
February 26, 2010
March 1, 2010
May 17, 2010
August 13, 2010
December 10, 2010
April 1, 2011
December 20, 2011
March 28, 2012
June 1, 2012
August 30, 2012
September 1, 2012

Number of
unvested
options
236,660
33,333
312,499
166,668
233,331
16,666
66,666
1,065,823

Weighted
average
contractual
life
(in years)
0.18
0.43
0.43
2.06
2.41
0.18
2.63
0.84
3.19
3.50
4.22
4.49
4.67
4.92
4.92
2.81
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Number of
vested
options
175,000
50,000
150,000
150,000
125,000
500,000
20,000
66,667
570,008
66,667
229,168
124,999
116,669
8,334
33,334
2,385,846
3,451,669

Exercise
price
C$
0.81
0.75
0.64
0.88
1.01
1.01
1.31
1.57
3.65
3.01
1.03
0.88
0.86
0.92
0.86

Expiry date
December 3, 2012
March 3, 2013
March 4, 2014
October 23, 2014
February 26, 2015
December 5, 2012
May 17, 2015
August 3, 2013
December 10, 2015
April 1, 2016
December 20, 2016
March 28, 2017
June 1, 2017
August 30, 2017
September 1, 2017
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The Company uses the fair value method of accounting for stock options and, during the year ended September 30,
2012, recognized stock-based compensation expense of $558 (September 30, 2011 - $1,287).
The fair value of the options granted during the year ended September 30, 2012 were estimated using the BlackScholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:
Grant date:
Options granted:
Exercise price (C$ per share)
Risk-free interest rate:
Expected life in years:
Expected volatility:
Expected dividend yield:
Expected forfeiture rate
Fair value per option granted C$
Weighted average grant date fair
value U $000’s

September 1, 2012
100,000
$0.89
1.27%
5.00
60.3%
Nil
10%
$0.47

August 31, 2012
25,000
$0.85
1.27%
5.00
60.4%
Nil
10%
$0.42

June 1, 2012
350,000
$0.86
1.27
5.00
60.6%
Nil
10%
$0.47

March 28, 2012
541,667
$0.88
1.47%
5.00
60.6%
Nil
10%
$0.44

December 20, 2011
625,000
$0.86
1.14%
5.00
60.6%
Nil
10%
$0.54

$47

$11

$157

$239

$328

The compensation expense associated with the stock options for the year ended September 30, 2012 includes an
estimated forfeiture rate of 10% based on the average rate of forfeitures over the last three years (2011 - 10%).
The weighted-average grant date fair value of the options granted are expensed over the vesting periods of the option
being 24 months from the grant dates.
As at September 30, 2012, the fair value associated with unvested stock options is $852 (September 30, 2011 $1,323).
(b)

Long-term compensation

(i)

DSU plan

The Company established a DSU plan, effectively a phantom stock plan, for directors, effective October 1, 2008. The
initial fair value of units issued is expensed and is included in long-term compensation expense under general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of loss. The fair value of the DSUs are marked to the quoted
market price of the Company's common shares at each reporting date and changes in their fair value are recorded
under general and administrative expenses. Payouts are settled in cash within a specified period following a director's
departure.
A summary of the DSUs transactions during the period are as follows:
Number of DSUs
192,178
36,785
(12,377)
216,586
66,710
(56,897)
(130,807)
95,592

Balance, October 1, 2010
Issued
Redeemed
Mark-to-market adjustment
Balance, September 30, 2011
Issued
Redeemed
Gain on redemptions
Mark-to-market adjustment
Less current portion
Balance, September 30, 2012

30

$

$

$

Fair Value
504
99
(32)
(254)
317
103
(50)
(37)
(128)
(118)
87
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(ii)

RSU plan

The Company established a RSU plan, effectively a phantom stock plan, for designated executives, effective October
1, 2008, with awards made as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company. RSUs are settled in cash and are
valued using the market value of the underlying common shares of the Company at the grant date. The fair value of the
RSUs is marked to the quoted market price of the Company's common shares at each reporting date and changes in
their fair value are recorded in long-term compensation expense under general and administrative expenses.
Number of RSUs
305,447
170,925
476,372
200,984
(323,684)
(43,627)
(215,251)
94,794

Balance, October 1, 2010
Issued
Mark-to-market adjustment
Balance, September 30, 2011
Issued
Redeemed
Gain on redemptions
Forfeited
Mark-to-market adjustment
Less current portion
Balance, September 30, 2012

$

173

$

Balance, September 30, 2012 – Long-term compensation ((i) DSUs and (ii)
RSUs)

20.

$

Fair Value
801
472
(540)
733
324
(380)
(109)
(67)
(220)
(195)
86

$

Mining costs

Mining costs include mine production costs, transport costs, royalty expenses, site administration costs, applicable
stripping costs and other related costs, but not the primary mine development costs, incurred at the EVBC Mine, which
are capitalized and depreciated over the specific useful life or reserves related to that development. The mining costs
for the year ended September 30, 2012 relate to the EVBC and UMZ Mines. During the fiscal year ended September
30, 2011, mining costs related to the mining of the Los Tojas deposit in Bolivia which was depleted at the end of the
second quarter of fiscal 2011 and the two months of production from the EVBC Mine.
Years ended September 30:
Direct mining costs
Royalties and mining rights
Mining royalty taxes
Total mining costs

$

$

31

2012
74,703
4,307
4,564
83,574

$

$

2011
15,982
1,283
1,025
18,290
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21.

General and administrative expenses

Years ended September 30:
Salaries, directors fees and office administration and other
Depreciation
Stock-based compensation expense
Stock-based consideration expense
Warrants
Long-term compensation
Foreign exchange
Total general and administrative expenses

22.

$

2011
5,398
73
1,272
5,214
(431)
138
11,664

$

$

Finance costs

Years ended September 30:
Interest on credit facilities
Other interest (income) expense
Amortization of financing fees
Accretion
Total finance costs

23.

2012
6,195
205
558
167
(214)
173
7,084

$

$

$

2012
2,996
810
910
604
5,320

2011
349
688
1,037

$

$

Income tax

Years ended September 30:
Current tax:
Current tax on income for the year
Adjustment in respect of prior years
Total current tax

2012
$

Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences
Total deferred tax
Income tax expense

$

5,717
5,717

(3,582)
(3,582)
2,135

2011
$

748
748

$

(4,045)
(4,045)
(3,297)

The tax on the Company’s income before tax differs from the amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to income of the consolidated entities as follows:
2012
Loss before income taxes

$

Statutory income tax rates
Income tax provision calculated using the combined Canadian federal and
provincial statutory income tax rates
Tax effects of:
Foreign tax rate differences
Non-deductible expenses
Tax losses not recognized
Income tax expense

32

$

(218)

2011
$

(24,603)

26.5%

28.8%

(58)

(7,073)

1,088
792
313
2,135

167
2,635
974
(3,297)

$
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Sources of deferred income tax assets and liabilities
As at September 30:
Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss carry forwards
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

$
$

2012

2011

7,148
7,148

4,720
4,720

(12,580)
(12,580)
(5,432)

$
$

(13,355)
(13,355)
(8,634)

At September 30, 2012, the Company has non-capital losses of $20,372 (2011 - $22,909) that expire over the periods
of 2026 to 2032 and other deductible temporary differences of $1,778 (2011 - $3,191). EMIPA has deductible
temporary differences of $6,445 (2011 - $5,145). The Company has not recognized the benefit of these items in the
financial statements.
The movement of the deferred income tax account is as follows:
For the years ended September 30:

2012

At October 1
Charge to the statement of loss
Other
Exchange differences
At September 30

24.

$

8,634
(3,582)
380
5,432

$

2011
$

12,770
(4,045)
(92)
8,634

$

Earnings (Loss) per share

For the years ended September 30
Earnings (loss) per share
Basic and diluted
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding – basic
Dilutive effect of stock options
Dilutive effect of warrants
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding – diluted

2012
$

(0.02)

2011
$

(0.18)

136,521,941
243,364
86,268

119,819,774
1,033,194
-

136,851,573

120,852,968

As a result of the net loss attributable to shareholders for the year ended September 30, 2011, the impact of antidilutive equity instruments were excluded from diluted loss per share calculation.
25.

Commitments and contingent liabilities

(a) The Company's mining and exploration activities are subject to various government laws and regulations relating to
the protection of the environment. These environmental regulations may change and are generally becoming more
restrictive. The Company records provisions for decommissioning liabilities based on management's estimate of such
costs. These estimates are, however, subject to changes in laws and regulations.
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(b) The Company is subject to certain risks, including currency fluctuations and possible political or economic
instability, which may result in the impairment or loss of mineral concessions or other mineral rights. Any changes in
laws or regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates, or shifts in political attitudes are beyond the
control of the Company and may adversely affect its business.
(c) On June 27, 2011, as a condition of operating an environmental permit on that date, the Government of the
Principality of Asturias, required the Company to commit to post an additional reclamation bond in the amount of
€10,000,000 (approximately $12,900 . The Company deposited €5,000,000 (approximately $6,465) in September
2011 with a local bank in favour of the Spanish regulatory authorities and may have to deposit another instalment of
€5,000,000 (approximately $6,465) which the Company is challenging based on technical considerations. The
Company has such funds available as restricted cash in the event that it has to meet this potential obligation.
(d) Production from the EVBC Mine is subject to a 3% net smelter return royalty (“N R” referred to herein as the
EVBC Royalty, payable quarterly. The EVBC Royalty rate decreases to 2.5% for any quarter in which the average
price of gold is below $1,100 per ounce. In consideration for the EVBC Royalty, the royalty holder advanced
C$7,500,000 in 2008 evidenced by a convertible debenture in the same principal amount. The debenture is settled
through payments calculated in the same manner as the EVBC Royalty as sales are made.
In the event that the rate of production from the EVBC Mine is less than a specified amount within the 2012 calendar
year, the royalty holder may exercise its conversion right under the debenture in respect of the outstanding principal
amount, if any, of the debenture at December 31, 2012. The Company expects that the royalty holder will convert the
debenture resulting in the EVBC Debenture Conversion Amount. As a result, the Company has included a charge of
$3,132 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, which is an estimate of the EVBC Debenture Conversion Amount as at
December 31, 2012. The Company expects to finance the EVBC Debenture Conversion Amount at a rate of 12% over
six equal installments commencing on January 31, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2013.
In addition, during the period commencing on December 31, 2012 and ending on January 31, 2013, if the aggregate
amount of payments paid as at December 31, 2012 under the EVBC Royalty is less than C$7,500,000, the royalty
holder may require a pre-payment of future EVBC Royalty payments. The prepayment amount would be based on the
C$7,500,000 less the royalty payments made to December 31, 2012. The Company expects that this pre-payment
right will be financed until January 1, 2014 at a rate of 12%, with all royalty payments made between January 1, 2013
and December 31, 2013 serving to reduce such amount. To the extent that any pre-payment is due and paid on
January 1, 2014, it will serve to reduce future royalty payments. Royalty expense under this NSR totaled $2,471 for
fiscal 2012 (2011 - $440).
(e) On November 22, 2011, the Company reported that an employee at the EVBC Mine was fatally injured when he
was caught between two pieces of equipment at the EVBC Mine. The Company has cooperated fully with the
authorities in their investigation of the accident. Currently, certain proceedings are ongoing to determine whether any
standards have been breached that may give rise to criminal charges. In addition, the Company has been notified by
the applicable mining regulatory authorities that, following the completion of the current proceedings, there will be an
administrative investigation pursuant to which the Company may be fined. At this time, the Company cannot predict
the outcome of any of these proceedings.
(f) Production from the UMZ Mine are subject to a 3% NSR royalty payable to a third party quarterly. Royalty expense
under this NSR totaled $1,634 for fiscal 2012 (2011 - $618). The Bolivian government collects a mining royalty tax on
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the revenue generated from copper, gold and silver sales from the UMZ Mine at rates of 5%, 7% and 6%, respectively.
These amounts totaled $4,564 for fiscal 2012.
(g) Minerals leases entered into by Orvana Resources are subject to quarterly NSR royalty payments and will range
from 2% to 4% on a sliding scale based on inflation-adjusted copper prices. The mineral leases may be terminated by
Orvana Resources on 60 days’ notice.
26.

Related party

(a) Fabulosa Mines Limited
In 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with Fabulosa under which its previous pre-emptive rights to acquire
common shares were amended. Fabulosa provided Orvana with a six-month, secured convertible $15,000 bridge loan
bearing interest at 8% per annum which was fully drawn down. As consideration therefor, Orvana issued to Fabulosa
1,969,999 common shares (refer to note 14 – Share capital (the “Consideration hares” for past services. In
addition, the Company also agreed to issue to Fabulosa five-year warrants to purchase up to 2,725,000 common
shares exercisable only upon the issuance of, and in equal numbers to, common shares issuable upon the exercise of
any of Orvana’s outstanding stock options as of May 16 2011. On eptember 6, 2011, the Company issued 1,300,000
warrants with an exercise price of C$1.90 with the second tranche of 1,425,000 warrants issued on March 5, 2012 with
an exercise price of C$0.97. At September 30, 2012, a total of 400,000 warrants were exercisable as a result of the
exercise of 400,000 options that were outstanding as of May 16, 2011. In addition, Orvana has agreed to implement, at
the request of Fabulosa, a normal course issuer bid (“NCIB” , subject to TSX approval. The purpose of the NCIB would
primarily be to acquire common shares to mitigate the dilutive effect of common shares issued upon the exercise of
stock options granted under Orvana’s tock Option Plan after May 16 2011.
In August 2011, the Company issued 8,500,000 common shares at a price of C$2.00 per common share for aggregate
gross proceeds of C$17 000 000 (the “Offering” . Concurrent with the Offering (i) the Company repaid in full the
outstanding amount of the $15,225 bridge loan, including accrued interest, by issuing 7,319,969 common shares to
Fabulosa at $2.00, and (ii) Fabulosa also acquired 1,180,031 common shares, on a private placement basis at a price
of C$2.00 per common share.
The Company has a secured demand loan facility (the “Fabulosa Loan” with Fabulosa Mines Limited the Company’s
52% shareholder, in the amount of $11,500. The Company is using proceeds drawn under the Fabulosa Loan for
working capital purposes. Interest on the outstanding principal is calculated at a rate per annum of 12% and is payable
monthly and the Company pays any withholding taxes imposed by Canadian taxing authorities. Subsequent to the end
of fiscal 2012, the repayment terms were amended and principal amounts outstanding under the Fabulosa Loan are
required to be repaid in the minimum amount of $1,000 per month commencing in May 2013. The Fabulosa Loan also
contains covenants that, among other things, require principal repayment in the event of the sale of EMIPA or all or
substantially all of its assets. The Fabulosa Loan is available for draw down until June 30, 2013 and matures on
December 31, 2013.
In the event that, prior to March 1, 2013, Fabulosa requests that Orvana add an additional Orvana director nominated
by Fabulosa and Orvana does not do so within ten business days, the Fabulosa Loan will convert back to a demand
loan. The Fabulosa Loan is secured by, among other things, a general security assignment over present and future
assets of Orvana excluding all amounts owing by Kinbauri to the Company. Concurrently, the Company entered into an
agreement with Fabulosa pursuant to which, for so long as it owns at least 10% of the outstanding Common Shares,
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Fabulosa has the right to designate, at any shareholders’ meeting at which directors are to be elected that number of
management’s nominees for election as directors of the Company that is the same proportion as its ownership interest
is of the Common Shares.
(b) Directors
During the year ended September 30, 2012, the Company paid $423 in director’s fees and $74 in consulting fees to
directors of the Company.
27.

Segmented information

The Company primarily operates in the gold and copper mining industry and its major products are gold dore and gold
and copper concentrates. Its activities include gold and copper concentrate production and exploration and
development of gold and copper properties. The Company’s primary mining operations are MIPA in Bolivia inbauri
in Spain and the Copperwood project in the United States. The reported segments are those operations whose
operating results are reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer and that pass certain quantitative measures. Operations
whose revenue, earnings or losses or assets exceed 10% of the total consolidated revenues, earnings or losses, or
assets are reportable segments. The Company has administrative offices in Toronto, Canada; Stockholm, Sweden;
and Nicosia, Cyprus. The following tables set forth the information by segment:
As at September 30, 2012:

EMIPA
Kinbauri
Copperwood
Canada and other

$

$

Cash and
cash
equivalents
3,146
3,952
75
6,027
13,200

$

$

Property,
plant and
equipment
32,659,
146,102
18,521
561
197,843

$

$

Reclamation
bonds and
restricted
cash
1,616
26,430
28,046

$

$

Other
assets
30,410
16,281
354
47,045

$

$

Total
assets
67,831
192,765
18,596
6,942
286,134

As at September 30, 2011:

EMIPA
Kinbauri
Copperwood
Canada and other

$

$

Cash and
cash
equivalents
2,050
4,711
33
5,450
12,244

$

$
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Property,
plant and
equipment
39,570
134,596
12,679
723
187,568

$

$

Reclamation
bonds and
restricted
cash
1,426
10,923
12,349

$

$

Other
assets
14,368
13,145
283
27,796

$

$

Total
assets
57,414
163,375
12,712
6,456
239,957
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For the year ended September 30, 2012:

EMIPA
Kinbauri
Copperwood
(2)
Canada and other

$

$

Revenue
58,678
82,239
140,917

$

$

Mining
(1)
costs
35,959
47,615
83,574

$

$

Depreciation
Amortization
3,263
11,754
205
15,222

(1)

Mining costs includes royalties, mining rights and mining taxes.

(2)

Depreciation is included under General and Administrative expenses for non-operating companies.

$

$

Other
(recoveries)
costs
$
2,396
3,281
622
9,945
$
16,244

Derivative
(gain) loss
26,095
26,095

Income
(loss) before
taxes
$
17,060
(6,506)
(622)
(10,150)
$
(218)

For the year ended September 30, 2011:

EMIPA
Kinbauri
Copperwood
(2)
Canada and other

Revenue
$
14,612
10,473
$
25,085

$

$

Mining
(1)
costs
11,048
7,242
18,290

Depreciation
amortization
$
1,325
2,754
73
$
4,152

(1)

Mining costs includes royalties, mining rights and mining taxes.

(2)

Depreciation is included under General and Administrative expenses for non-operating companies.

28.

Derivative
(gain) loss
$
13,611
$
13,611

$

$

Other
(recoveries)
costs
2,492
1,385
712
9,046
13,635

$

$

Income (loss)
before taxes
(253)
(14,519)
(712)
(9,119)
(24,603)

Financial instruments and fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy establishes three levels to classify the
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The following table summarizes the fair value of financial assets and liabilities at September 30, 2012 and 2011 and
October 1, 2010.
September 30, 2012
Carrying
Fair
value
value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Concentrate and dore receivables
Value added taxes, other receivables
and prepaids
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Bank debt
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities
Short term debt
Long-term debt
Obligations under finance leases
Derivatives instruments
Long-term compensation
Warrants
Total financial liabilities

September 30, 2011
Carrying
Fair
value
value

October 1, 2010
Carrying
Fair
value
value

$13,200
16,783
10,052

$13,200
16,783
10,052

$12,244
2,682

$12,244
2,682

$11,947
-

$11,947
-

13,035
$53,070

13,035
$53,070

12,078
$27,004

12,078
$27,004

10,992
$22,939

10.992
$22,939

7,581

7,581

6,417

6,417

3,049

3,049

34,873
4,171
56,623
2,044
23,847
173
167
$129,479

34,873
4,171
56,623
2,044
23,847
173
167
$129,479

21,778
47,817
4,179
12,336
1,050

21,778
47,817
4,179
12,336
1,050

15,346
2,582
2,522
1,860

15,346
2,582
2,522
1,860

$93,577

$93,577

$25,359

$25,359

Fair value hierarchy
The following table classifies financial assets and liabilities that are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value in to
the fair value hierarchy based on significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The levels in the
hierarchy are:





Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). For example, interest rate and yield
curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, forward pricing curves used to value currency and commodity
contracts and volatility measurements used to value options contracts
Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are based on unobservable market data (supported by little or no
market data or other means).
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As at September 30, 2012
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Concentrate and dore receivables
Total
Financial liabilities:
Derivative instruments
Long-term compensation
Warrants
Total

Quoted prices
in active
markets for
identical assets
(Level 1)

Significant
other
observable
inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)

Aggregate
Fair value

$16,783
$16,783

$13,200
$10,052
$23,252

-

$13,200
16,783
10,052
$40,035

$173
$173

$23,847
167
$24,014

-

$23,847
173
167
$24,187

Valuation techniques
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, value-added taxes other receivables and prepaids,
accounts payables and bank indebtedness approximate their fair value due to their short term maturities. These
financial assets and liabilities are classified as Level 1.The methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value
of other financial assets and liabilities are as follows:
Concentrate and dore receivables: The fair value of receivables arising from copper and gold sales contracts that
contain provisional pricing mechanisms are determined using the appropriate quoted forward price from the exchange
that is the principal active market for the particular metal and are classified within Level 2.
Long-term debt: The Company’s long-term debt carries interest based on specified benchmark interest rates plus a
spread (refer to note 15). The fair values of the Company’s debt obligations approximate their carrying amounts due
to the fact that interest is adjusted periodically based on changes in the relevant benchmark interest rates and there
have been no significant changes in the Company’s own credit risk and are classified as Level 1.
Derivative instruments: The fair values for derivative instruments are estimated using industry standard valuation models.
Where applicable, these models use observable inputs including commodity forward prices, foreign exchange rates and
forward prices determined using applicable yield curves at each measurement date for comparable contracts and
represent the amounts the Company would have received from or paid to a counterparty to unwind the contract at the
market rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Derivative instruments fall within Level 2
Long-term compensation: The fair value for long-term compensation is determined based on the closing quoted
market price of the Company’s shares from T X at each balance sheet date and is classified as Level 1.
Warrants. The Company’s warrants are not actively traded and measured at fair value using the Black Scholes model
and are classified as Level 2.
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Financial Risks Factors
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risks (including currency risk, interest rate risk,
and commodity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Enterprise risk management is carried out by management under
policies approved by the board of directors thereof. Management identifies and evaluates the financial risks in cooperation with the Company’s operating units. The board reviews management’s risk management programs and
provides oversight on specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity. The Company’s
overall risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.
(a)

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Orvana’s functional currency is the U dollar. The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar and the Euro.
Currency risk arises when future recognized assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
Company’s functional currency and may impact the fair values thereof or future cash flows of the Company’s
financial instruments. Exchange rate fluctuations may also affect the costs that the Company incurs in its
operations. The Company does hedge a portion of its foreign currency exposure as a requirement under the EVBC
Loan.
Certain cash and cash equivalents are held in other foreign currencies, primarily Euros and Canadian dollars. At
September 30, 2012, sensitivity to a 10% decrease in Euro versus the US dollar would increase cash balances by
approximately $33 and a 10% increase in Euro versus the US dollar would decrease cash balances by
approximately $27. Sensitivity to a 10% decrease in the Canadian dollar versus the US dollar would increase cash
balances by approximately $47 and a 10% increase in the Canadian dollar versus the US dollar would decrease
cash balances by approximately $39.
For the outstanding US Dollar/Euro hedge contracts at September 30, 2012, if the forward rates of the US dollar
against the Euro weakened or strengthened by 10%, than those used in the US dollar/Euro financial instrument
loss calculation while all other variables remained constant the Company’s net loss for the year would have been
$4,246 higher or lower as a result of changes in the fair value of the US dollar/Euro forward contracts.
(ii) Price risks
The Company is primarily exposed to gold and copper commodity price risk. The Company, in accordance with
the requirements of the EVBC Loan, has hedged a portion of its gold and copper production which facilitates the
management of certain of its price risk.
Gold prices
The net loss of $2,353 for the 2012 fiscal year would be impacted by changes in average realized gold prices on
gold ounces sold. A 10% increase/decrease in average realized gold prices would affect the net loss by an
increase/decrease of approximately $5,777 for the year ended September 30, 2012. This excludes the impact of
changes in the mark-to-market of outstanding gold forward contracts.
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For the outstanding gold forward contracts at September 30, 2012, if the forward market prices of gold had been
10% lower or higher than those used in the gold forward derivative loss calculation while all other variables
remained constant, the net loss for the year would have decreased or increased by $3,820 as a result of changes
in the fair value of these outstanding gold forward contracts.
At September 30, 2012, if the forward market prices of gold had been 10% lower than those used in the gold collar
derivative loss calculation while all other variables remained constant, the net loss for the year would have
decreased by approximately $5,611 as a result of changes in the fair value of these outstanding gold collar
contracts. If the forward market prices of gold had been 10% higher than those used in the gold collar derivative
loss calculation while all other variables remained constant, the net loss for the year would have increase by
approximately $6,235 as a result of changes in the fair value of these outstanding gold collar contracts.
Copper prices
Net loss of $2,353 for the 2012 fiscal year would be impacted by changes in average realized copper prices. A
10% increase/decrease in average realized copper prices would affect net income by an increase/decrease of
approximately $3,254. This excludes the impact of changes in the mark-to-market of outstanding copper forward
contracts.
For the outstanding copper forward contracts at September 30, 2012, if the forward market prices of copper had
been 10% lower or higher than those used in the derivative loss calculation while all other variables remained
constant, the net loss for the year would have decreased or increased by $5,630 as a result of changes in the fair
value of these copper forward contracts.
(iii) Interest rate risk
The Company’s cash flow interest rate risk arises from short and long-term borrowings. During fiscal 2012 and
2011, a significant portion of the Company’s borrowings and investments were at variable rates. The EVBC Loan
is the most significant loan and is based on Libor plus 4%.
At September 30, 2012, if interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, the net loss for the year would have been $40 lower/higher, primarily as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.
(b)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a counterparty’s inability to fulfill its payment obligations. The Company's
credit risk is primarily attributable to gold-copper concentrate, gold dore sales and value-added tax receivables and a
government subsidy receivable from the Spanish government in connection with the completed development of the
EVBC. The Company has a concentration of credit risk with three customers to which gold-copper concentrate and
gold dore are sold under agreements and who provide provisional payments to the Company upon each shipment to
the customer. These institutions are international and are large with strong credit ratings. Value-added taxes
receivables are collectable from the Bolivian and Spanish governments. Management believes that the credit risks
with respect to financial instruments attributable to concentrate and gold sales receivable and value-added taxes
receivable is minimal. The government subsidy receivable is collectible by the Company over a three year period
from the Spanish government.
The Company has entered into its financial instruments pursuant to the EVBC Loan with one counterparty that is a
large international financial institution with a strong credit rating.
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(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Cash flow
forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Company and aggregated at the Orvana corporate level to
monitor rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational
needs at all times. Such forecasting takes into consideration the Company’s debt financing and compliance with debt
covenants among other factors.
As at September 30, 2012, the Company had restricted cash of $16,873 designated to cover a portion of the
Company’s commitments due in less than one year including two quarters of principal and interest payments under
the EVBC Loan and the reclamation bond for the EVBC Mine which may have to be deposited. The Company expects
to meet the remainder of its contractual obligations due in less than one year from cash flow from operating activities.
In fiscal 2012, the Company generated cash flow from operating activities of $41,705 and cash flow from operating
activities before changes in non-cash working capital of $33,276 with twelve months of ramp-up operations at the
EVBC Mine including certain operational challenges experienced in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012 which have now
been primarily addressed and nine months of ramp up commercial production operations at the UMZ Mine including
certain operational challenges experienced in the first and second quarter of fiscal 2012 which have now been
addressed.
If unanticipated events occur that may impact the operations of the EVBC Mine and the UMZ Mine and/or if the
Company does not have adequate access to financing on terms acceptable to the Company, the Company may not
have adequate resources to maintain its operations or advance its projects as currently anticipated. In such
circumstances, the Company may need to take additional measures to increase its liquidity and capital resources,
including obtaining additional debt or equity financing, strategically disposing of assets or pursuing joint-venture
partnerships, equipment financings or other receivables financing arrangements. The Company may experience
difficulty in obtaining satisfactory financing terms or adequate project financing. Failure to obtain adequate financing on
satisfactory terms could have a material adverse effect on Orvana’s results of operations or financial condition
Surplus cash held by the operating entities over and above balances required for working capital management are
invested in interest bearing short-term deposits.
(d)

Financing risk

Financing risk is the risk that if unanticipated events occur that may impact the operations of the EVBC Mine and the
UMZ Mine and/or if the Company does not have adequate access to financing on terms acceptable to the Company,
the Company may not have adequate resources to maintain its operations or advance its projects as currently
anticipated.
29.

Capital management

At September 30, 2012, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $13,200, restricted cash of $16,783 including
$8,806 set aside for debt repayment, and total debt of $72,190. The Company considers its capital employed to consist
of shareholders’ equity (including share capital contributed surplus and retained earnings total debt and obligations
under finance leases, net of cash and cash equivalents as follows:
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hareholders’ equity
(1)
Bank debt
(1)
Short-term debt
(1)
Long-term debt
Obligations under finance leases

$

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
$
(1)

September 30,
2012
125,814
7,581
4,171
60,438
2,044
200,048
(13,200)
186,848

$

September
30, 2011
$127,462
6,417
47,817
4,179
185,875
(12,244)
173,631

$

$

October 1,
2010
108,234
3,049
2,582
2,522
116,387
(11,947)
104,440

Bank debt represents various credit facilities associated with the UMZ Mine. Short-term debt represents the Fabulosa Loan. Long-term debt
represents the EVBC Loan. The Company’s recorded long-term debt under the EVBC Loan at September 30, 2012 of $44,706 and the
current portion thereof was $11,917 for a total of $56,623. This represents the balance outstanding under the EVBC Loan at September 30,
2012 of $60,438 net of financing fees.

The Company’s financial objective when managing capital is to make sure that it has the cash and debt capacity and
financial flexibility to fund its ongoing business objectives including operating activities, investments and growth in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, in addition to using cash flows from operating activities for this purpose, the Company may issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt.
The Company monitors its capital structure and makes adjustments according to market conditions in an effort to meet
its objectives given the Company’s operating and financial performance and current outlook of the business and
industry in general. The Company’s alternatives to fund future capital needs include cash flows from operating
activities, debt or equity financing, adjustments to capital spending, or sale of assets. The capital structure and these
alternatives are reviewed by management and the board of directors of the Company on a regular basis to ensure the
best mix of capital resources to meet the Company’s needs.
The Company manages capital through its operating and financial budgeting and forecasting processes. The Company
reviews its working capital and forecasts its future cash flows on a periodic basis, based on operating expenditures and
other investing and financing activities. The forecast is regularly updated based on the results of its EVBC Mine, the
UMZ Mine and the Copperwood Project. Information is regularly provided to the board of directors of the Company.
30.

Subsequent events
(a) On October 2, 2012, Kinbauri repaid $3,448 in principal and interest under the EVBC Loan.
(b) Subsequent to the end of fiscal 2012, on November 7, 2012, Orvana repaid $500 in principal, interest and
standby fees, on December 4, 2012 the Company drew additional proceeds of $2,000 under the Fabulosa
Loan resulting in a balance outstanding of $5,671. Additionally, the Fabulosa Loan repayment terms were
amended, where the principal amounts outstanding under the Fabulosa Loan are required to be repaid in the
minimum amount of $1,000 per month commencing in May 2013, the availability period to draw down funds
was extended to June 30, 2013 and the maturity dated extended to December 31, 2013.
(c) On December 18, 2012, the technical report “Updated Resource and Reserve stimates for the Don Mario
Upper Mineralized Zone Project astern Bolivia” was completed by Kminante Consultores Ltda. and is
available on SEDAR.
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31.
(a)

Transition to IFRS
First-time adoption of IFRS

The Company’s transition to IFR requires the application of IFR 1 which provides guidance for an entity’s initial
adoption of IFRS. IFRS 1 generally requires retrospective application of the standards effective at the end of an entity’s
first annual IFRS reporting period. However, IFRS 1 also provides certain optional exemptions and mandatory
exceptions to this retrospective treatment.
The Company has elected to apply the following IFRS 1 optional exemptions in its preparation of its opening IFRS
consolidated statement of financial position as at October 1 2010 the Company’s Transition Date.


To apply IFRS 2 Share-based Payments only to equity instruments that were issued after November 7,
2002 and had not vested by the Transition Date.



To apply IFRS 3 Business Combinations prospectively from the Transition Date, therefore not restating
business combinations that took place prior to the Transition Date.



To apply IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities prospectively
from the Transition Date. IFRIC 1 provides guidance regarding the treatment of changes in
decommissioning restoration and similar liabilities such as the Company’s decommissioning liabilities.



To apply IAS 23 Borrowing Costs prospectively from the Transition Date. IAS 23 requires the
capitalization of borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, production or construction of
certain assets.



To not reassess whether arrangements contain a lease under IFRS where the same determination that
would be made under IFRIC 4, Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, was made
previously in accordance with Canadian GAAP.



To apply the transitional provisions of IFRIC 4 to leases for which the same determination as IFRIC 4
was not made previously in accordance with Canadian GAAP. Therefore, the determination of whether
these arrangements contain a lease is based on the circumstances existing at the Transition Date.

IFRS 1 does not permit changes to estimates that have been made previously. Estimates used in the preparation of
the Company’s opening IFR balance sheet and other comparative information restated to comply with IFRS are
consistent with those made previously under current Canadian GAAP.
(b)

Reconciliation of equity and comprehensive income as previously reported under Canadian GAAP to IFRS:
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September
30, 2011
Canadian
GAAP

Note
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Concentrate and dore sales receivable
Value added taxes receivable and prepaid
expense
Inventory

Long term value-added taxes receivable
Restricted cash
Reclamation bonds
Property, plant and equipment

$

(i)

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Bank debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable
Short term loan
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of obligations under finance leases
Current portion of derivative instruments

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Contributed surplus
(Deficit) retained earnings

Adjustments

$

12,078
10,280
37,284

$

Long-term debt
Obligations under finance leases
Decommissioning liabilities
Derivative instruments
Provision for statutory labour obligations
Deferred income tax liability
Long-term compensation

12,244
2,682

$

(i)
(iv)
(ii)

(iii)
$
$

45

2,756
2,275
10,074
187,513
239,902

6,417
21,778
35

September 30,
2011
IFRS

-

$

-

12,078
10,280
37,284

-

$

$

55
55

-

12,244
2,682

$

$

2,756
2,275
10,074
187,568
239,957

6,417
21,778
35

9,346
2,002
1,717
41,295

-

9,346
2,002
1,717
41,295

38,471
2,177
8,099
10,619
1,549
7,216
1,050
110,476

(199)
800
1,418
2,019

38,471
2,177
7,900
10,619
2,349
8,634
1,050
112,495

115,930
2,648
10,848
129,426
239,902

(182)
(1,782)
(1,964)
55

115,930
2,466
9,066
127,462
239,957

$
$

$
$
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(c)

The following provides is a summary of the transition adjustments to the Company’s accumulated
comprehensive loss from Canadian GAAP to IFRS for the respective periods. The adoption of IFRS did not
have a material impact on the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Note
Comprehensive income (loss) under Canadian GAAP
Accretion on decommissioning liabilities
Deferred taxes on non-monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign operations
Forfeiture estimate for share-based payments

$

(ii)
(iii)

$

(1,050)
143

62
$

(2,353)

$

(21,306)

The following provides a summary of the transition adjustments to the Company’s shareholders’ equity from
Canadian GAAP to IFRS for the respective periods.

$

September 30,
2012
124,189

$

(933)
123,256

Note
hareholders’ equity under Canadian GAAP
Accretion on decommissioning liabilities
Deferred taxes on non-monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign operations
Valuation on statutory labour obligation
hareholders’ equity under IFR

(e)

Year ended
September 30,
2011
(20,653)
254

(i)

Comprehensive income (loss) under IFRS

(d)

Year ended
September 30,
2012
(2,415)

$

(i)
(ii)(iii)

September
30, 2011
129,426
254

$

(1,418)

(vi)

$

(800)
127,462

October 1,
2010
109,402

(368)
$

(800)
108,234

Explanatory notes
These explanatory notes also refer to the reconciliation of the consolidated balance sheets from Canadian
GAAP to IFRS included above.
(i) The effect of the change in accounting policy to measure decommissioning liabilities using a discount
rate based on current interest rates, adjusted to reflect the risks specific to the liability.
(ii) The effect of the change in accounting policy to recognize deferred taxes on the temporary differences in
the accounting and tax basis of non-monetary assets and liabilities of foreign operations arising from
exchange rate fluctuations.
(iii) The effect of the change in accounting policy to incorporate an estimate of forfeitures when determining
the expense related to share-based payments.
(iv) The effect of the change in accounting policy to incorporate an actuarial valuation of statutory labour
obligations.

The adoption of IFRS resulted in changes to the accounting policies as compared with the most recent annual financial
statements prepared under Canadian GAAP which has resulted in changes to the recognition and measurement of
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transactions and balances within these financial statements. Accounting policies have been changed to be consistent
with IFRS as is expected to be in effect on September 30, 2012.
The following summarizes the significant changes to the Company’s accounting policies on adoption of IFR
effect on the Company’s financial statements.

and the

Mineral Properties under Exploration
Subject to certain restrictions, IFRS currently allows an entity to determine an accounting policy that specifies the
treatment of costs related to the exploration for and evaluation of mineral properties. On adoption of IFRS, the
Company has retained its policy of capitalizing exploration expenditures once management has determined that there
is a reasonable expectation of economic extraction of minerals from the property.
Mineral Properties under Development
There was no distinction under Canadian GAAP between mineral properties under exploration and mineral properties
under development. Under IFRS, once technical feasibility and commercial viability of a property can be demonstrated,
the carrying value is reclassified. On adoption of IFRS, the Company has changed its accounting policy to reclassify
the carrying value of a property to mineral properties under development once technical feasibility and commercial
viability of a property can be demonstrated.
Decommissioning Liability (Asset Retirement Obligations)
IFRS requires the recognition of a decommissioning liability for legal or constructive obligations, while current
Canadian GAAP only requires the recognition of such liabilities for legal obligations. A constructive obligation exists
when an entity has created reasonable expectations that it will take certain actions.
The Company's accounting policies related to decommissioning liabilities have been changed to reflect this difference;
however the change had no significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
The discount rate used to measure decommissioning liabilities under IFRS is based on current interest rates, adjusted
to reflect the risks specific to the liability. Under Canadian GAAP, the discount rate used is the credit adjusted risk-free
rate.
Under Canadian GAAP, the discount rate used for asset retirement obligations (decommissioning liabilities under
IFR was the entity’s credit-adjusted risk-free rate. In addition, changes in the discount rate were not reflected in the
measurement of the provision. The unwinding of the discount was presented as an operating expense. At the end of
fiscal 2010, the average credit-adjusted risk-free interest rate was 8% for the Company’s VBC and UMZ Mines.
Under IFRS (IAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets), the discount rate used reflects the risks
specific to the obligation. Changes to the discount rate require re-measurement of the provision. The unwinding of the
discount is presented as a financing cost. The impact is mainly related to these changes in the discount rate. Total
projected undiscounted cash outflow for the decommissioning liabilities for the EVBC and UMZ Mines has not changed
except to remove the inflation factored into the liability under Canadian GAAP. At the end of fiscal 2010, the average
discount rate was 4% for the Company’s mines. As at December 31 2010 the discount rate increased to 5% for the
EVBC Mine and has remained at this rate to September 30, 2012.
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Under Canadian GAAP, the obligation was measured based on fair value using third-party market assumptions. Under
IFRS, the decommissioning liability (Asset retirement obligations) is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.
On adoption of IFRS the Company has changed the discount rates used to measure decommissioning liabilities. The
effect of applying this change in accounting policy was an increase to decommissioning liabilities of $381 and a
corresponding increase in mineral properties under development at October 1, 2010.
Under IFRS, the accretion in the decommissioning liabilities due to the unwinding of the discount rate is classified as a
finance cost. Under Canadian GAAP, the accretion was recorded within operating expenses.
This change in accounting policy resulted in a reclassification of the accretion associated with decommissioning
liabilities from operating expenses to finance costs in the comparative periods.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
IFRS requires a write down of assets if the recoverable amount is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount
is defined as the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. Value-in-use is determined using
discounted estimated future cash flows. Under Canadian GAAP, a write down to estimated fair value was required only
if the undiscounted estimated future cash flows of a group of assets are less than its carrying value.
IFRS also requires the reversal of any previous impairment losses, with the exception of goodwill, where
circumstances have changed such that the level of impairment in the value of the assets has been reduced. Canadian
GAAP prohibits the reversal of impairment losses.
The Company has changed its accounting policies related to impairment of assets to be consistent with the
requirements under IFRS. The changes in accounting policies related to impairment did not have a significant impact
on the opening IFRS consolidated balance sheet.
Share-based Payments
In certain circumstances, IFRS requires a different measurement of share-based compensation than Canadian GAAP.
In particular IFR requires forfeitures of the Company’s stock options restricted share units and deferred share units
to be estimated when the instruments are granted. Under current GAAP, it is not required to account for forfeitures at
the time of grant and the Company records forfeitures when they occur.
On adoption of IFRS the Company has changed its accounting policies to estimate forfeitures of share-based
payments. The effect of applying this change in accounting policy was a decrease in contributed surplus of $39 and a
corresponding increase in retained earnings at October 1, 2010.
Income taxes
IFRS requires the recognition of deferred taxes on the temporary differences in the accounting and tax basis of nonmonetary assets and liabilities of foreign operations arising from exchange rate fluctuations. Deferred taxes were not
recognized on these types of temporary differences under current Canadian GAAP.
The Company’s accounting policies were changed to reflect this difference. The effect of applying this change in
accounting policy was an increase in deferred income tax liabilities of $368 and a corresponding decrease in retained
earnings at October 1, 2010.
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